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1 Chlver City, CA 90230 : ACCUSATION
y Pharmacist License No, RPH 41071 '
— Respondent.
15
—— 16 |
17 Complainant alleges:
18 ' PARTIES
19 1, Virginia Hefol_d ("Complainant") brings this Accusation solely in her official capacity
20 | as the Executive Officer of the Board of Pharmacy, Department of Consumer Affairs,
21 2, - Onor about August 17, 1987, the Board of Pharmacy issued Pharmacist License
22 || Number RPH 41071 to Michael T. McKinley ("Respondent”). The Pharmacist License was in
23 || full force aﬁd effect at all times relevant to the charges brought hetein and will expire on August
24 |I 31,2015, unless renewed. | :
25 | | JURISDICTION
26 3, This Accusation is brought before the Board of Pharmacy ("Board"), Department of
27 Con:qﬁmer Affairs, under ;che‘ authority of the following laws. All section references are to the
28 || Business and Professions Code unless otherwise indicated,

1

Accusation




R = R v R =0 % T - N VL I\

10
11

4, Section 4300,i of the Code sﬁtes:
~ "The expiration, oancellatio.n, forfeiture, or sugpension of a board-issued license by

bperation of law 61‘ by order or decision of the board or a court (;f;law, the placement of a license |
on a retired status, or the voluntary surrender of a license by a lic:e'ﬁsee shall riot deprive the board
of jurisdiction to commence or proceed with any investigation of, or action or disciplinary
proceeding against, the licensee or to render a decision suspending br revoking the license."
| 5, Section 4300 of the Code states, in pertinent part: ‘

"(a) Every license {ssued may be suspended or revoked, -

"(b) The board shall discipline the holder of any license issued by the board, whose default |
has been entered or whose case has been heard by the board and found guilty, by any of the

following methods;
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"(1) Suspending judgment.

"(2) Placing him or her upon probation,

"(3) Suspending his or her right fo practicé for a period not exceeding one year,
"(4) Rovoking his or her license.

‘"(‘5) Taking any other action in relation to disciplining him or her as the board in its

discretion may deem proper.

- "(e) The proceedings under this article shall be conducted in accordance with Chapter 5
(oommenéing with Section 11500) of Part 1 of Division 3 of the Government Code, and the board
shall have all the powers granted theréin. Th_e action shall be final, except that the propriety of the
action is subject to review by fhé superior court pursuant to Section 1094.5 of the Code of Civil
Procedure."

STATUTES AND REGULATIGNS

6. Section 490 of the Code states, in pertinent part:

"(a) In addition to any other action that a board ig permitted to take against a licensee, a

board may suspend or revoke a license on the ground that the licensee has been convicted of a
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disecipline a licensee for conviction of a crime that is independent of the authority granted under

crime, if the erime is substantially related to the qualifications, functions, or duties of the business
or profession for which the license was igsued,

"(b) Notwithstanding any other provision of law, a board 1ﬁay exercise any authority to

subdivision (a) only if thc crime is éubstantially related to the qu%iiiﬁoatiops, functions, or duties
of the business or profession for which the licensee's license was'issued.

"(c) A conviction within the meaning of this section means a plea or verdict of guilty or a
conviction following a plea of nolo contendere. An action that a board is permitted to take
following the establishment of a conviction may be taken when the time for appeal has elapsed, or
the judgment of conviction has been affirmed on appeal, or when an order granting prebation is

made suspending the imposition of sentence, irrespective of a subsequent order under Section
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- subparagraph (A) of paragraph (5) of, subdivision (a) of Section 4052, This section shall not

_nurse-midwife, nurse practitioner, or physician assistant, when in stock in containers correctly

Jabeled with the name and address of the supplier or producer,

"y

1203.4 of the Penal Code, , . ."

7."  Section 4060 of the Code states:

"No perSOn shall possess any controlled substance, except thaf furnished to a_lﬁerson upon
the prescription of a physician, dentist, podiatrist, optometrist, Veterinarian, or naturopathic doctor
pursuant to Section 3640,7,or furnished pursuant to a drug order issued by a certified
nurse-midwife pursuant to Section 2746.51, a nurse practitioner pursuant to Section 2836.1, or a
physician assistant pursuant to Section 3502.1, or naturopathic doctor pursuant to Section 3640.5,

or a pharmacist pursuant to either subparagraph (D) of paragrtiph (4) of, or clause (iv) of

apply to the possession of any confrolled substance by a manufactyrer, wholesaler, pharmacy,

pharmacist, physician, podiatrist, dentist, optometrist, veterinarian, naturopathic doctor, certified

"Nothing in this section authorizes a certified nurse-midwife, a nurse practitioner, a
physician assistant, or a naturopathic doctor, to order his or her own stock of dangerous drugs and

devices,"
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8. Section 4301 of the Code states, in pertinent part;
"The board shall take action against any holder of a license who 1s guilty of unprofessional
conduct or whose license has been procured by fraud or fnisrepresehtation or issued by mistake,

Unprofessional conduct shall include, but is not limited to, any of the following;

"(f) The commission of any act inyolving moral turpitude, dishonesty, fraud, deceit, or
corruption, whether the act is committed in the course of relations as a licensee or otherwise, and

whether the act is a felony or misdemeanor or not,

"(h) The administering to oneself, of any controlled substance, or the use of any dangerous

drug or of alcoholic beverages to the extent or in a manner as to.be dangerous or injurious to
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oneself, to a person holding a license under this chapter, or to any other person or to the public, or

to the extent tha{ the use impairs the ability of the person to conduct with safety to the public the

practice authorized by the license,

"(§} The violation of any of the statutes of this state, or any other state, or of the United

States regulating controlled substances and dangerous drugs,

- "(1) The conviction of a erime substantially related to the qualifications, functions, and
duties of a licensee under this chapter, The record of conviction of a violation of Chapter 13
(commencing with Section 801) of Title 21 of the United States Code regulating controlled
substances or of a violation of the statutes of this state regulating controlled substances or
dangerous drugs shall be conclusive evidence of unprofessional conduct. In all other cases, the
record of conviction shall be conclusive evidence only of the fact that the conviction oécurred.
The board may inquire into the circumstances surrounding the commission of the crime, in order
to fix the degree of discipline or, in the case of a conviction not involving controlled substances or
dal;gcrous drugs, to determine if the conviction is of an offense substantially felated to the

qualifications, functions, and duties of a licensee under this chapter, A plea or verdict of guilty or

4
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a conviction following a plea of nolo contendete is deemed to be a conviction within the meaning
of this provision, The board may take action when the time for appeal has elapsed, or the
judgment of conviction has been affirmed on appeal or when an order granting probation is made

suspending the imposition of sentence, itrespective of a subsequent order under Section 1203.4 of

the Penal Code allowing the person to withdraw his or her plea of guilty and to enter a plea of not

- guilty, or setting aside the verdict of guilty, or dismissing the_acdimation, information, or

indictment,

"(0) Violating or attempting to. violate, directly or indirectly, or assisting in or abetting the
violation of or conspiring to violate any provision or term of this chapter or of the applicable

federal and state laws and regulations governing pharmacy, including regulations established by
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the board or by any other state or federal regulatory agency. , . ."

9. Health and Safety Code section 11170 states, "[n]o person shall preseribe, administer,
or furnish a controlled substance for ﬁimself."

10.  Health and Safety Code section 11350, subdivision (a) states:

"(a) Except as otherwise provided in this divisidn, every person who possesses (1) any
controlled substance specified in subdivision (b) or (¢), or paragraph (1) of subdivision (f) of
Section 11054, specified in paragraph (14), (15), or (20) of subdivision (d) of Section 11054, or
specified in subdivision (b) or (c) of Section 11055, or specified in subdivision (h) of Sectlon
11056, or (2) any controlied substance classified in Schedule III, IV, or V which is a narcotic
drug, unless upon the written preseription of a physician, dentist, podiatrist, or veterinarian
licensed to practice in this state, shall be punished by imprisonment pursuant to subdivision (h) of
Section 1170 of the Penal Code."

11, California Code of Rogulations, title 16, section 1"7’7.{)',» states:

"For the pufpose of denial, suspension, or revooation of a personal or facility license _
pursuant to Division 1.5 (commencing with Section 475) of the Business and Professions Code, a
crime or act shall be considered substéntially related to the qualifications, functions or duties of a

licensee or registrant if to a substantial degree it evidences present or potential unfitness of a
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licensee or registrant to perform the functions authorized by his license or registration in a manner
consistent with the public health, safety, ot welfare,”

CONTROLLED SUBSTANCES/DANGEROUS DRUGS

12, Xanax, the brand name for alprazolam, which is used to treat anxiety, panic disorder,
and insomnia, is a Schedule IV controlled substance pursuant to eralth and Safety Code section
i 1057, subdivision (d)(1) and Is a dangerous drug pursuant to Business and Professions Code
section 4022, | |

13, Viagra, the .brand name for sildenafil citrate, which is used 1o treat erectile

dysfunction, is a dangerous drug pursuant to Business and Professions Code section 4022,

COST RECOVERY

14, Section 125.3 of the Code states, in pertinent part, that the Board may request the
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administrative law judge to direct a licentiate found to have committed a violation or violations of
the licensing act to pay a sum not to exceed the reasonable costs of the investigation and
enforcement of the case,

FIRST CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Conviction of a Substantially Related Crime)

15. Respondent ig subject to disciplinary action uﬁder Code sections 490 and 4300,
subdivision (1), in conjunction with California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 1770, on the
grounds of unprofessional conduct in that Respondent was convicted of a crime substantially |
related to the qualifications, functions, and duties of a licensed pharmacist which evidenlces hisg
present and/or potential unfitness to perform the functions of a licensed pharmacist in a manner
consigtent with the public health, safety, or welfare. The circumstances are as follows:

16, On or about September 27, 201 3, after pleading nolo. contendere, Respondent was
convicted of one misdemeanor count of violating Vehicle Code section 23152, subdivision (a)
[driving a vehicle under the influence of an alcoholic beverage] in the criminal proceeding

entitled The People of the State of Callfornia v. Michael Theodoye McKinley (Super. Ct, Los

i Angeles County, 2013, No. 3WA01070.) The Court sentenced Respondent to thirty six months

probation, a nine mo.nth firgt offender alcohol/drug education and counseling program, and
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ordered him fo attend 104 alcoholics anonymous/narcotics anonymous meetings one time per
2 || week. | |
3 17, The circumstances surrounding the conviction are that on or about the early morning
4 || hours of February 16, 2013, Respondent struck a parked car while he was driving his vehicle,
5 || After officers arrived on the scene, they observed that Respondent had an unsteady gait, watery,
6 |i bloodshot eyes, .and slow, slurred speech, Respondent admitted that lie had consumed alcoholic
i beveragies. Respc'mdent provided a breath sample and his blood alcohol content was 0.21% and
g 1| 0.20%,
o SECOND CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE
10° (Dangerous Use of Alcohol)
11 18. Respondent is subject to disciplinary action under Code section 4301, subdivision (h)
12 || on the grounds of unprofessional conduet in that or about February 15 and/or 16, 2013,
13 lRespondent consumed alcoholic beverages In a manner dangerous or injurious to himself or the
14 || public. Complainant incorporates by reference Paragraph 17 as though fully set forth herein,
N 15 THIRD CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE
— 16 (Unlawful Possession of a Controlled Substance)
17 19.  Respondent is subject to disciplinary action under Code sections 4060 and 4301,
18 || subdivision (o) on the gr(;ullds of unprofessional rconduct in that on or about September 30, 2011,
19 || Respondent admitted in writing that over the past two years, while working at Rite Aid as a
20 || pharmacist, he took five 0.5 mg tablets of Xanax for his personal use,
21 | FOURTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE
22 (Violation of State Statutes Regulating Controlled Substances)
23 20. Respondent is subject to disciplinary action under Code section 4301, subdivision ()
24 |; and Health and Safety Code sections 11350, subdivision (a) and 11170 on the grounds of
25 || unprofessional conduct in that on or about September 30, 2011, Respondent admitted in writing
26 || that over the past two years, while working at Rite Aid as a pharmacist, he took five 0.5 mg
27 || tablets of Xanax for his personal use,
28 |l /11
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FIFTH CAUSE F I‘OR DISCIPLINE

“(Dishonest Acts)

21, Responden% is subject to disciplinary action under Caée section 4301, subdivision )
on the grounds of unprofessional conduct in that Respondent cofrjmitted dishonest acts. On or
about September 30, 2011, Respondcnt admitted in writing that over the past two years, while

orklng at Rite Aid a3 a pharmacist, he took five 0.5 mg tablets of Xanax and elght 100 mg
tablets of Viagra for his personal use. He also admitted to taking three packages of gum and three
packages of cigareties without paying for them,

DISCIPLINE CONSIDERATIONS

22.  To determine the degrée of discipline, if any, to be imposed on Respondent,

Complainant alleges that on or about April 1, 2008, in.a prior action, the Board of Pharmacy
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issued Citation Number CI 2007 35826 to Respondent in the amount of‘$2,000.00 for violating
California Code of Regulations, title 16, sections 1712, 1716, and 1717, sybdivision (g). That
Citation is now final and is incorporated by reference as though fully set forth herein,

23, To determine the degree of discipline, if any, to be imposed Ol’ll. Respondent,
Complainant alleges that on or about July 28, 2001, ina priof action, case number 1778, the
Board of Pharmacy adopted a Stipulation for Settlement in which Respondent received a letter of
public reptimand for violating Business and Professions Code section 4350.5 and California Code
of Regulations 1707.2. That Stipulation for Settlements is now final and is incorporaied by
reference as though fully set forth herein, |

PRAYER
R WHEREFORE, Complainant requests that a hearing be held on the matters herein alleged,
and that following the hearing, the Board of Pharmacy issue a decision:
1. Revoking or sus ﬁend_ing Pharmacist License Number RPH 41071, issved to Michael
T, McKinley:

2, Qrdering Michael T, McKinley to pay the Board of Pharmacy the reasonable cosis of

the investigation and enforcement of this case, pursuant to Business and Professions Code section

125.3; and
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3. Taking such other and further action as deemed necessary and proper,

DATED:

/)4
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VIRGINIX NFROLD

Executiva Qfficer

Board of Pharmacy

Department of Consumer Affairs
State of California

Complainant
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